
City Council Meeting Agenda 
July 25, 2023 

Page 1 of 2 

City of Belton, Texas 
City Council Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, July 25, 2023 - 5:30 p.m. 
Wright Room at the Harris Community Center 

401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 

Councilmember Craig Pearson will be participating in the 
meeting remotely from Panama City Beach, Florida. 

Pledge of Allegiance. The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag will be led by 
Councilmember Wayne Carpenter. 

Texas Pledge. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag will be led by City Clerk Amy 
Casey. 

“Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee Texas, one state under 
God, one and indivisible.” 

Invocation. The Invocation will be given by Mayor David K. Leigh. 

1. Call to order.

2. Public Comments.

Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may register to do
so prior to this meeting and speak during this item. Forms are located on the
table outside of the south side entry to the meeting room. Please state your
name and address for the record and limit your comments to three minutes.
Also, please understand that while the Council appreciates hearing your
comments, State law (Texas Gov’t Code §551.042) prohibits them from: (1)
engaging in discussion other than providing a statement of specific factual
information or reciting existing City policy, and (2) taking action other than
directing Staff to place the matter on a future agenda.

Consent Agenda 

Items 3-4 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and may 
be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
July 25, 2023 

Page 2 of 2 
 
 

3. Consider minutes of the July 11, 2023, City Council meeting. 
 
4. H-23-05 – Consider a Façade Improvement Grant to restore previously infilled 

windows and replace windows at the property located at 100 Water Street, located in 
the Downtown Belton Commercial Historic District. 

 
Planning and Zoning 
 
5. Z-23-12 – Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Planned 

Development – Single Family-1 Residential District to Single Family-1 Residential 
District for approximately 53.49 acres described as Matilda Connell Survey, Abstract 
6, located east of N. Main Street on Mystic River Drive to allow for detached single-
family homes. This application was withdrawn by the applicant.   

 
6. Conduct a Public Hearing and consider an ordinance annexing a 5.78 acre tract, 

located on Taylors Valley Road, east of Hubbard Lane and west of the Leon River. 
 
7. Z-23-14 – Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Agricultural (A) 

to Heavy Industrial (HI) on an approximately 5.78 acres tract of property on Taylors 
Valley Road, located in the O.T. Tyler Survey, Abstract 20, on the north side of 
Taylors Valley Road, east of Hubbard Lane and west of the Leon River.   

 
8. Consider a preliminary plat for the Taylors Valley Addition, comprising 43.07 acres, 

located on Taylors Valley Road, east of Hubbard Lane and west of the Leon River.  
 
9. Consider a final plat for the Taylors Valley Addition Phase I, comprising 8.06 acres, 

located on Taylors Valley Road, east of Hubbard Lane, and west of the Leon River. 
 
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time regarding any issue on 
this agenda for which it is legally permissible. 
 
If interpreter services for the deaf or hearing impaired are required, please contact the City Clerk at (254) 
933-5817 at least 48 hours in advance. 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
July 25, 2023 

Page 1 of 3 
 
 

 
City of Belton, Texas 

 
City Council Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, July 25, 2023 - 5:30 p.m. 
Wright Room at the Harris Community Center 

401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 
 

OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER 
 

Councilmember Craig Pearson will be participating in the 
meeting remotely from Panama City Beach, Florida. 

 
 
Pledge of Allegiance. The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag will be led by 
Councilmember Wayne Carpenter. 
 
Texas Pledge. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag will be led by City Clerk Amy 
Casey. 
 

“Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee Texas, one state under 
God, one and indivisible.” 

 
Invocation. The Invocation will be given by Mayor David K. Leigh. 
 
1. Call to order. 
 
2. Public Comments. 

 
Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may register to do 
so prior to this meeting and speak during this item. Forms are located on the 
table outside of the south side entry to the meeting room. Please state your 
name and address for the record and limit your comments to three minutes. 
Also, please understand that while the Council appreciates hearing your 
comments, State law (Texas Gov’t Code §551.042) prohibits them from: (1) 
engaging in discussion other than providing a statement of specific factual 
information or reciting existing City policy, and (2) taking action other than 
directing Staff to place the matter on a future agenda. 

 
Consent Agenda 
 
Items 3-4 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and may 
be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
July 25, 2023 

Page 2 of 3 
 
 

removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. 
 
3. Consider minutes of the July 11, 2023, City Council meeting. 
 
 A copy of the minutes is attached. Recommend approval. 
 
4. H-23-05 – Consider a Façade Improvement Grant to restore previously infilled 

windows and replace windows at the property located at 100 Water Street, 
located in the Downtown Belton Commercial Historic District. 

 
Please see Staff Report from Planner Tina Moore. At its meeting on July 6, 2023, 
the Historic Preservation Commission recommended approval, and Staff concurs 
with their recommendation. 

 
Planning and Zoning 
 
5. Z-23-12 – Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Planned 

Development – Single Family-1 Residential District to Single Family-1 
Residential District for approximately 53.49 acres described as Matilda Connell 
Survey, Abstract 6, located east of N. Main Street on Mystic River Drive to 
allow for detached single-family homes. This application was withdrawn by the 
applicant.   

 
This item has been withdrawn and no action is needed. Since it was advertised for a 
public hearing, it needed to appear on the agenda. 

 
6. Conduct a Public Hearing and consider an ordinance annexing a 5.78 acre 

tract, located on Taylors Valley Road, east of Hubbard Lane and west of the 
Leon River. 

 
Please see Staff Report from Director of Planning Bob van Til. Recommend 
conducting the public hearing and adopting the ordinance as presented. 

 
7. Z-23-14 – Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from 

Agricultural (A) to Heavy Industrial (HI) on an approximately 5.78 acres tract of 
property on Taylors Valley Road, located in the O.T. Tyler Survey, Abstract 20, 
on the north side of Taylors Valley Road, east of Hubbard Lane and west of the 
Leon River.   

 
Please see Staff Report from Planner Tina Moore. At its meeting on July 18, 2023, 
the Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously recommended approval, and 
Staff concurs. 

 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
July 25, 2023 

Page 3 of 3 
 
 

8. Consider a preliminary plat for the Taylors Valley Addition, comprising 43.07 
acres, located on Taylors Valley Road, east of Hubbard Lane and west of the 
Leon River.  

 
Please see Staff Report from Planner Tina Moore. At its meeting on July 18, 2023, 
the Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously recommended approval, and 
Staff concurs. 

 
9. Consider a final plat for the Taylors Valley Addition Phase I, comprising 8.06 

acres, located on Taylors Valley Road, east of Hubbard Lane, and west of the 
Leon River. 

 
Please see Staff Report from Planner Tina Moore. At its meeting on July 18, 2023, 
the Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously recommended approval, and 
Staff concurs. 

 
 
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time regarding any issue on 
this agenda for which it is legally permissible. 
 
If interpreter services for the deaf or hearing impaired are required, please contact the City Clerk at (254) 
933-5817 at least 48 hours in advance. 



Belton City Council Meeting 
July 11, 2023 – 5:30 P.M. 

 
The Belton City Council met in regular session in the Wright Room of the Harris 
Community Center. Members present included Mayor David K. Leigh, Mayor Pro Tem 
John R. Holmes, Sr., Councilmembers Wayne Carpenter, Craig Pearson (Zoom), Daniel 
Bucher, Stephanie O’Banion and Dave Covington. Staff present included Sam Listi, 
John Messer, Amy Casey, Gene Ellis, Mike Rodgers, Chris Brown, Matt Bates, Larry 
Berg, Paul Romer, Charlotte Walker, Cynthia Hernandez, Megan Odiorne, Jon 
Fontenot, Joe Dyer, Jo-Ell Guzman and Parks and Recreation Staff.  
  
The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag was led by Councilmember Stephanie 
O’Banion, and the Pledge to the Texas Flag was led by Director of Public Works Matt 
Bates. The Invocation was given by Councilmember Wayne Carpenter. 
 
1. Call to order. Mayor Leigh called the meeting to order at 5:32 p.m. 
 
2. Public Comments. (Audio 1:56) 

 
There were no comments.  
 

3. Proclamation  ̶  National Parks and Recreation Month  ̶  July 2023 
 
Mayor Leigh read the Proclamation for National Parks and Recreation Month, and 
members of the Belton Parks and Recreation Department were present to receive it.  
 

4. Recognize Manuel Zapata as a recipient of the 2023 National Recreation and 
Park Association’s 30 under 30 award.  
 
Public Works Director Matt Bates recognized Recreation Coordinator Manuel Zapata 
on his receipt of this prestigious award.  
 

Consent Agenda 
 
Items 5-9 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and may 
be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. (Audio 10:38) 
 
5. Consider the minutes of previous meetings: 

 
A.  June 27, 2023, City Council Workshop meeting.  
B.  June 27, 2023, City Council meeting.  
 



Belton City Council Meeting 
July 11, 2023 – Page 2  
 

  

6.   Consider a resolution denying Oncor’s application for approval of a 
Distribution Cost Recovery Factor to increase distribution rates within the 
City.  
 

7. Consider an allocation in the FY2024 General Fund budget of $92,250 as a 
grant match for our new owner-occupied replacement homes through the 
Texas Home Investment Partnerships HRA Program by the Texas Department 
of Housing and Community Affairs (TDHCA) for participation in the HOME 
Program.  

 
8.   Consider authorizing the Executive Director of the Belton Economic 

Development Corporation to enter into an infrastructure development 
agreement with TH Belton Industrial QOZP I, LP, for construction of a 
wastewater line from Digby Drive to IH-14.  
 

9. Consider authorizing the City Manager to take all steps necessary to support 
the City of Houston in their challenge of the constitutionality of pre-emption 
legislation, HB2127.  

 
Councilmember Carpenter requested that Consent Agenda Item 9 be pulled for 
discussion. 
 
Upon a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Holmes, and a second by Councilmember Covington, 
Consent Agenda Items 5-8, including the following captioned resolution, were approved 
upon a unanimous vote of 7-0. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-14-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS, FINDING THAT ONCOR 
ELECTRIC DELIVERY COMPANY LLC’S APPLICATION TO AMEND ITS 
DISTRIBUTION COST RECOVERY FACTOR AND UPDATE GENERATION RIDERS 
TO INCREASE DISTRIBUTION RATES WITHIN THE CITY SHOULD BE DENIED; 
AUTHORIZING PARTICIPATION WITH THE STEERING COMMITTEE OF CITIES 
SERVED BY ONCOR; AUTHORIZING HIRING OF LEGAL COUNSEL; FINDING 
THAT THE CITY’S REASONABLE RATE CASE EXPENSES SHALL BE 
REIMBURSED BY THE COMPANY; FINDING THAT THE MEETING AT WHICH THIS 
RESOLUTION IS PASSED IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AS REQUIRED BY LAW; 
REQUIRING NOTICE OF THIS RESOLUTION TO THE COMPANY AND LEGAL 
COUNSEL. 
 
City Manager Sam Listi presented Item 9 stating that City staff feels it is very important 
for the City of Belton to take a stand with the City of Houston against the pre-emption 
bill, HB2127, that is set to go into effect on September 1, 2023. 
 
Upon a motion by Councilmember O’Banion, and a second by Councilmember 
Carpenter, Consent Agenda Item 9 was approved upon a unanimous vote of 7-0. 



Belton City Council Meeting 
July 11, 2023 – Page 3  
 

  

FY2024 Budget 
 
10. Receive a presentation on the FY2024-FY2028 Strategic Plan and invite public 

input at the City Council meeting on August 22, 2023. (Audio 15:51) 
 
City Manager Sam Listi gave a presentation on the goals and objectives of the 
proposed FY2024-FY2028 Strategic Plan. Mr. Listi stated the Strategic Plan will be 
considered for adoption at the September 12, 2023, City Council meeting in 
conjunction with budget adoption, and he recommended the Council receive public 
input at the City Council meeting on August 22, 2023. 
 

11. Receive a presentation on the FY2024 Proposed Annual Budget for the City of 
Belton. (Audio 26:24) 
 
Director of Finance Mike Rodgers presented an overview of the proposed FY2024 
Budget. No action is required of the Council at this time. Budget adoption is 
scheduled for the City Council meeting on September 12, 2023, at 5:30 p.m., at the 
Harris Community Center. 

 
Miscellaneous 
 
12. Receive a presentation on Fire Department Training which occurred between 

June 5 and June 24, 2023. (Audio 1:42:55) 
 
Fire Chief Jon Fontenot presented this item. No action was required of the Council. 
 

There being no further business, the Mayor adjourned the meeting at 7:22 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

_____________________________  
David K. Leigh, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________  
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



City Council Agenda Item 
July 25, 2023 

Page 1 of 4

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 

Date: July 25, 2023 
Case No.: H-23-05
Request: Restore and Replace 

Windows and FIG 
Applicant: Lina Chtay 
Address: 100 Water Street 

Agenda Item #4 

H-23-05   ̶  Consider a Façade Improvement Grant to restore previously infilled windows and
replace windows at the property located at 100 Water Street, located in the Downtown Belton
Commercial Historic District.

Originating Department 

Planning Department – Tina Moore - Planner/HPO 

Case Summary 

The applicant has submitted this request to replace existing windows and install previously 
infilled windows with the exact replacement size.    

Historic District  

Downtown Belton Commercial Historic District 

Background Information 

The property at 100 Water Street is in the Downtown Belton Commercial Historic District. The 
former Grand Opera is a contributing property in both the local historic district and National 
Registered Belton Commercial Historic District. The local district contains buildings constructed 
between 1870 and 1959. Nearly half of the buildings in this district are contributing historic 
structures.  

According to the 2012 City of Belton Historic Resources Survey, this is a high-priority two-part 
commercial block with Romanesque Revival stylistic influence. According to the survey, this 
building was built in 1895 with a limestone exterior. The 2022 Historic Building Survey notes 
the building was remodeled in 1930 and indicates the arched window opening and fanlight over 
doors are decorative features. The 2022 survey also notes that the previous window openings 
have been infilled.   



City Council Agenda Item 
July 25, 2023 

Page 2 of 4   
 

Summary 
 
The applicant recently purchased this building and plans to provide leasable retail and 
restaurant spaces. Exterior renovations include the following: 
 
North Facing Façade – Water Street 

1. Replace four 84’ x 138” windows and half-circle windows.  
2. Replace eleven 50” x 70” windows. 
3. Clean and seal the limestone exterior. 
4. Add signage. 
5. Replace the fabric awning color.  

 
West Facing Façade – N. Main Street 

1. Remove limestone from four previously filled windows. Limestone to be saved for 
enclosing alley opening.  

2. Add four 68” x 120” half-circle windows. 
3. Clean and seal the limestone exterior.  
4. Add signage. 

 
South Facing Façade – Alley  

1. Close one “opening” with stone used from previously filled windows.  
2. Replaced three previously filled openings three 50” x100” eyebrow windows and one 

80’ x 160” eyebrow entrance and add a rear door.  
 

Secretary’s Standards for Rehabilitation 
 
Listed below are the Secretary of the Interior’s Standard for Rehabilitation that should be 
evaluated when considering the appropriateness of the proposed renovation:  
 

1. Deteriorated historic features shall be repaired rather than replaced. Where the severity 
of deterioration requires the replacement of a distinctive feature, the new feature shall 
match the old in design, color, texture, and other visual qualities and, where possible, 
materials. Replacement of missing features shall be substantiated by documentary, 
physical, or pictorial evidence. Staff noted changes in the property while reviewing the 
Sanborn maps from 1885 to 1921. This was originally several storefronts (grocery, 
shoemaker, hide and wool, soda water) constructed of frame construction. In the 1896 
map, the Grand Opera House was at this location. Constructed with stone material on 
the first floor, the second, third, and fourth floors were brick construction. Three windows 
were shown on the eastern section of the building. In 1907, the Christian Church 
occupied this property; the western windows were removed, and the overall height of 
the building was reduced to two stories. Windows were added to the second floor at the 
southern elevation. Over the years other improvements and openings were added.  
 
The applicant is requesting to open previously closed windows and replace the existing 
upper-story windows. Typically, historic windows contain wooden sills and muntins but 
are prone to damage from the elements and as well as time. The applicant indicates 



City Council Agenda Item 
July 25, 2023 

Page 3 of 4   
 

that the existing wooden frames are damaged and requests that they be removed to 
prevent damage from moisture. The proposed windows are double layered with a solar 
film between them that provides the tinted finish. The historic practice recommends 
clear or very slightly tinted glass to be used on the upper and storefront windows. Per 
our design guidelines, when window replacement is necessary, it must be done within 
the existing historic openings to avoid filling in or enlarging the original windows. The 
applicant is maintaining the configuration of the upper windows. 
 

2. Chemical or physical treatments, such as sandblasting, that cause damage to historic 
materials shall not be used. The surface cleaning of structures, if appropriate, shall be 
undertaken using the gentlest means possible. The applicant plans to power wash the 
exterior and reseal the building exterior.  

 
Historic preservation practices encourage repairs not replacement of original windows. It is 
recommended to weatherize existing windows to increase energy efficiency. Non-operable 
windows are a detriment and are not consistent with building code safety requirements. A 
similar replacement would be ideal; however, the new windows will be compatible in proportion, 
shape, location, pattern, and size.     
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
The total cost for the façade project is estimated at $213,000. The applicant stated this was 
previously several storefronts (4 storefronts) and has requested the maximum matching grant 
allowed for two storefronts with three visible facades. An aerial view of the property shows a 
break in the roof pattern that indicates two storefronts. A maximum amount of $40,000 is 
requested.  
 
Amount:   $40,000 
 
Budgeted:       Yes    No       
 
Funding Source(s):  $90,000 was included in the TIRZ FY 2023 budget for FIG funding.  
 
Recommendation 
 
At their meeting on July 6, 2023, the Historic Preservation Commission recommended approval 
of the COA and FIG subject to the following conditions:  
 

1. The existing windows should be replaced with an in-kind match, and the wooden sills 
should be repaired and restored not removed.  

2. Tinted windows are permitted on the western elevation (N. Main Street) but not allowed 
at the primary (Water Street) and secondary (alley) elevations.  

3. Recommend approval of a maximum amount of $40,000 for the FIG. 
 
  



City Council Agenda Item 
July 25, 2023 

Page 4 of 4   
 

Attachments 
 

HPC minutes from July 6, 2023 meeting 
Certificate of Appropriateness Application 
Location Maps 
Pictures and Sanborn Map 
FIG Budget Overlook 



 
 

1 
 

Minutes of the Belton 
Historic Preservation Commission (HPC) 

Thursday, July 6, 2023 
 

The Historic Preservation Commission met at 5:30 P.M. in the Wright Room, Harris Community Center. 
The following Commission members were present: Chair TC Lipe, Barrett Covington, and Ann West. 
Commission members Tammie Baggerly and Ann Carpenter were absent. The following staff members 
were present: Director of Planning, Bob van Til, Planner and Historic Preservation Officer (HPO) Tina 
Moore, Planning Administrator Melinda Brice, and Recreation Coordinator Manuel Zapata.  
 
 
1. Call To Order. 

 
Commission Chair TC Lipe called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.  
 

2. Public comments. (Audio 00:43)  
 
Commission Chair TC Lipe invited the public to speak. With no speakers, the public comment 
period was closed.  
 

3. Approve the minutes from the previous meeting. (Audio 01:27) 
 
Commission Member Barrett Covington made a motion to approve the minutes from the March 2, 
2023, meeting. Commission Member Ann West seconded the motion. The minutes were approved 
with 3 ayes and 0 nays. 
 

4. H-23-05 Consider a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) application and Façade 
Improvement Grant to restore previously infilled windows and replace windows at the 
property located at 100 Water Street, located in the Downtown Belton Commercial Historic 
District.  (Audio 2:05) 

Planner and HPO Tina Moore presented the staff report. 
 
Lina Chtay, Applicant, of 1170 Indian Pass, Salado, TX, answered questions for the commission 
members.   
 
Commission Member Ann West made a motion to approve H-23-05 with the following conditions: 
1.  In-kind wood framing replacement or repairs are required around the windows; 
2. Tinted windows are allowed only on the West side along Main Street; 
3. Pressure washing or sandblasting of the limestone exterior is not permitted.  
4. Recommend approval of the $40,000 Façade Improvement Grant (FIG).  

 
Commission Member Barrett Covington seconded the motion, which was passed with 3 ayes and 0 nays. 

 
5. H-23-06 Consider a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) application to replace exterior 

wood siding with Hardiplank at 1027 N. Penelope Street, located in the North Central Belton 
Historic District.  (Audio 31:58) 



 
 

2 
 

 
Planner and HPO Tina Moore presented the staff report.  
Jose Pizano, Applicant, and Joanna Pizano, Applicant’s Daughter, and Interpreter, of 673 Decker 
Rd., Belton, TX, answered questions for the commission members.   
 
Commission Member Barrett Covington made a motion to approve H-23-06 to allow the 
replacement of the wood siding with hardiplank wood at 1027 N. Penelope Street. Commission 
Member Ann West seconded the motion, which was passed with 3 ayes and 0 nays. 
 

6. Receive an update regarding administrative approvals the Historic Preservation Officer 
granted. (Audio 40:10)   

Planner and HPO Tina Moore provided an update of administratively approved COAs for the 
months of March-June 2023. 

With no further business on the agenda, the meeting adjourned at 6:13 p.m.  
 

        ___________________________________ 
         Chair, Historic Preservation Commission 















































Façade Improvement Grant

FY 22-23
Budget 120,000$        

Applicant Date Approved Location Status of project Amount
Refunded - March 15, 2023 CRW/Dean Wrinkler September 14, 2021 207 E. Central Avenue Complete 20,000.00$       
Refunded - May 10, 2023 Dominica Garza January 25, 2022 122 N Pearl St. Complete 9,775.00$         

subtotal 29,775.00$       
Budget Remaining 90,225.00$         

Pending Projects Daybreak Construction March 14, 2023 203 N. East Street Complete 10,000.00$       
Daybreak Construction March 14, 2023 201 N. East Street Complete 20,000.00$       
J.A.I. L. Ministries March 14, 2023 211 E. Central Ave In progress 5,175.00$         

Subtotal 35,175.00$       35,175.00$         

FY 22/23 Balance 55,050.00$    

FY 23/24 Budget 150,000$        

Pending Projects Arusha Coffee Company October 27, 2020 126 N. East Street In progress 11,502.37$       
Jo Mapel April 13, 2021 108 W. Central Ave In progress 20,000.00$       
Lina Chtay Pending consideration 100 Water Street Pending 40,000.00$       

Subtotal 71,502.37$       

FY 23/24 Balance 78,497.63$    



 
 

 

City Council Agenda Item 
July 25, 2023 

Page 1 of 2   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item              
 
Agenda Item #6 
 
Conduct a Public Hearing and consider an ordinance annexing approximately 5.78 acres, 
located on Taylors Valley Road, generally located east of Hubbard Lane and west of the Leon 
River. 
  
Originating Department 
 
Planning – Bob van Til, AICP, Planning Director 
 
Purpose 
 
The purpose of this item is to conduct a public hearing and consider an ordinance annexing a 
parcel of land described as: 
 

• A 5.78-acre tract located in the O.T. Tyler Survey, Abstract 20, Taylors Valley Road, Bell 
County, Texas (Property ID# 479259, B/CS Leasing LLC, Property Owner). 

 
Background Information 
 
Todd Scott’s development company, KDAVEO, LLC/Cross Plains Development/Riley Scott 
Development, presented a concept plan to the City last year for a 42.28-acre tract of land north 
of Taylors Valley Road and south of the Leon River (see attached #1). This concept plan 
includes residential, office warehouse, a batch plant, and provides an easement for an 
alternative future regional Belton-Temple Georgetown Railroad trail. The property includes a 
portion of land that is in the City of Temple’s ETJ. This is the 5.78-acre area subject to the 
annexation (see attachment #2). 
 
Mr. Scott indicated that a company which operates batch plants is interested in purchasing the 
property located on eastern boundary of the 42.28-acre tract. To facilitate the development, 
and its associated infrastructure, the BEDC entered into an agreement with the property owner. 
However, the BEDC cannot offer incentives to a project on land that is located outside the city 
limits of Belton. 
 
This is a voluntary annexation request. The property was in the Temple ETJ. The property 
owner requested that the property be released by Temple so that it could become part of 
Belton’s ETJ and annexed into the City of Belton. The City of Temple began the process to 
release the ETJ on June 15, 2023. The release of the ETJ was completed on July 6, 2023. On 
June 27, 2023, the City Council approved Resolution 2023-13 calling a public hearing for July 
25, 2023, for the annexation of this property. 
  

 



 
 

 

City Council Agenda Item 
July 25, 2023 

Page 2 of 2   
 

Zoning of the Annexed Property 
 
The property will be zoned Agricultural automatically upon annexation. To accommodate the 
proposed development, the property owner requested that the newly annexed property be 
rezoned to Heavy Industrial. The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of 
the rezoning during their meeting on July 18, 2023, subject to the completion of the annexation. 
 
The rezoning request is also scheduled for this City Council meeting, following the action to 
annex.  
 
Mr. Scott is also currently in the process of platting the property to facilitate the proposed 
improvements. Those items are also on the July 25, 2023, Council agenda. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Conduct the public hearing and approve the ordinance annexing approximately 5.78 acres 
located on Taylors Valley Road. 
 
Attachments 
Taylors Valley Concept Plan 
Map of the tract of land subject to annexation 
Request for annexation (email) 
Ordinance approving the voluntary annexation, including the legal description of the property 
and the Service Plan. 



© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

FUTURE
PHASE 2
12.15 ACRES

OFFICE/
WAREHOUSE
8.46 ACRES

BATCH
PLANT
5.82 ACRES

FUTURE
PHASE 2
12.15 ACRES

OFFICE/
WAREHOUSE
7.41 ACRES

0 30015075

1" = 150'

PM

DESIGN

CHECKED

DRAFTED

PROJECT #

TWF

01-001-001
DRAWING #

5

SIGNATURE DATE

CONCEPT MAP

TAYLOR'S VALLEY
ROAD

REV. DESCRIPTION DATE
1 ORIGINAL RELEASE 05/06/2020

T.B.P.E.L.S. FIRM NO.: 21633

THIS DOCUMENT IS
RELEASED FOR THE

PURPOSE OF REVIEW
UNDER THE AUTHORITY
OF XXXXXX, P.E. XXXXX
ON 00/00/0000. IT IS NOT

TO BE USED FOR
CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING,

OR PERMIT PURPOSES.

N

S

W E

TWF
TWF
TWF

TRAIL



29907

105062

79020

107186467657

100107

17414

147157

12798

151489

346700 114287

467654

132444

52332

52436

399310

458546

467652

171401

11374

467655

389824

3375

484432

108977

108976

100108

147155

107180

387637
461460

479259

26993

TAYLORS VALLEY

6TH

HU
BB

AR
D

ROCK WOOL

Pepper Cree k

Leon River

Leon River

HI

HI

HI

LI HI

HI

HI

Attachment 2:
Taylors Valley Development Annexation

Area in the City of Belton 
Zoned HI

Area Subject to
Annexation and Zoning
(AG to HI)

CITY LIMITS

CITY PARCELS

Zoning
Heavy Industrial

Light Industrial

[

0 750 1500375 Feet





ORDINANCE NO. 2023-22 
 
AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED TERRITORY TO 
THE CITY OF BELTON, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND EXTENDING THE 
BOUNDARY LIMITS OF SAID CITY SO AS TO INCLUDE SAID HEREINAFTER 
DESCRIBED PROPERTY WITHIN SAID CITY LIMITS AND GRANTING TO ALL THE 
INHABITANTS OF SAID PROPERTY ALL THE RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES OF 
OTHER CITIZENS AND BINDING SAID INHABITANTS BY ALL OF THE ACTS, 
ORDINANCES, RESOLUTIONS, AND REGULATIONS OF SAID CITY; AND 
ADOPTING A SERVICE PLAN OR AGREEMENT. 
 
 
WHEREAS, §43.003 of the Texas Local Government Code authorizes the City of 
Belton, Texas, an incorporated city, to annex territory. 
 
WHEREAS, the procedures prescribed by the Texas Local Government Code and the 
Charter of the City of Belton, Texas, and the laws of this state have been duly followed 
with respect to the following described territory, to wit: 
 
Property described as a 5.78-acre tract of property located in the O.T. Tyler Survey, 
Abstract 20, Taylors Valley Road, Bell County, Texas (Property ID# - 479259, B/CS 
Leasing LLC, Property Owner). (See Exhibit A) 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, TEXAS: 
 

1. That the heretofore described property is hereby annexed to the City of Belton, 
Bell County, Texas, and that the boundary limits of the City of Belton be and the 
same are hereby extended to include the above described territory within the city 
limits of the City of Belton, and the same shall hereafter be included within the 
territorial limits of said city, and the inhabitants thereof shall hereafter be entitled 
to all the rights and privileges of other citizens of the City of Belton and they shall 
be bound by the acts, ordinances, resolutions, and regulations of said city. 

 
2. A service plan or agreement for the area is hereby adopted and attached as 

Exhibit B. 
 
The City Clerk is hereby directed to file with the County Clerk of Bell, Texas, a certified 
copy of this ordinance. 
 



PASSED by an affirmative vote of all members of the City Council, this the 25th day of 
July, 2023. 
 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ________________________ 
      David K. Leigh, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 
 



KDAVEO LLC 
DOC. #2022-027146 

CALLED 36.501 ACRES 
JONATHAN HUNTER 

DOC. #2016-028924 

50' WIDE INGRESS/EGRESS 
EASEMENT - 1.142 ACRES 

JONATHAN HUNTER 

DOC. #2016-028924 

--
--

--

CALLED 15.937 ACRES 
RUSSELL SCHNEIDER et ux. 

JOY SCHNEIDER 
VOL. 3673, PG. 527 

5.78ACRES 

P.O.B. 
1/2

11 
iron rod found 

N 

.... ..... 
... 

N 

0 
... 

= 

CLJ 

FEMA Special 
Flood Hazard Area 

Zone "AE", per 
FEMAFIRM No. 

48027C0345E, 

dated 09/26/2008. 

10' WIDE UTILITY 

EASEMENT (0.072 ACRE) 
CITY OF TEMPLE 

DOC. #2018-025964 

CALLED 264.432 ACRES 
KILLEEN ONION CREEK LP 

DOC. #2018-020116 

---

EXHIBIT "A" 

BEING 5.78 ACRES OF LAND OUT OF THE ORVILLE T. TYLER 

SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 20, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND BEING 

ALL OF A CALLED 5.781 ACRE TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN A 

DEED TO JONATHAN HUNTER, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 

2017-052282, REAL PROPERTY RECORDS IN BELL COUNTY, TEXAS. 

;r ctr 
r -�

�
, , -ii 

;J1/ 
�No//in!•j/_/ 

��t' 

-f 
.--

�·toot,.;21 

lifJ) 

SURVEYOR'S NOTES: 

1. The bearings and distances recited hereon are grid values derived from GPS
observations based on the NAD83(2011) State Plane Coordinate System, Texas
Central Zone No. 4203. The Combined Correction Factor (CCF) = 0.9998618.

2. A portion of this tract is shown to be within Zone "AE" (Special Flood Hazard
Area), per FEMA's Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) for Bell County, Texas,
panel number 48027C0345E, effective date of09/26/2008. This does not imply
that this tract will, or will not flood, nor does it create any liability in such event
on the part of this surveyor.

3. Field Notes accompany this exhibit.

LEGEND: 

P.O.B . =POINT OF BEGINNING 

• = CAPPED IRON ROD FOUND (unless otherwise noted) 

o = 1/2" IRON ROD WITH CAP SET

- oHE - = OVERHEAD ELECTRIC 

CURVE TABLE: 
CURVE RADIUS ARC LENGTII 
Cl 1104.18' 53.95' 

j 
0 100' 200' 

1-- I 

SCALE: 1" = 200' 

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE 

CHORD LENGTH CHORD BEARING DELTA ANGLE 
53.95' S 83°29'22" W 2°47'59" 

FRCBIS 
LFIN□ SURVEYING 

I, the undersigned, Registered Professional Land Surveyor, in the State of Texas, do 
hereby certify to the best of my knowledge and belief, that this map is true and correct, 
that it was prepared from an actual survey of the property made on the ground, and that 
all boundary survey monuments are correctly shown thereon. 

Luther E. Frobish 
Registered Professional Land Surveyor 
State of Texas No. 6200 

FROBISH LAND SURVEYING: PO Box 1411, Belton, TX 76513-5411, (254) 624-7688, TBPLS Registration No. 10194672 

04/17/2023



FROBISH LAND SURVEYING: PO Box 1411, Belton, TX 76513-5411, (254) 624-7688, TBPLS Registration No. 10194672 

FIELD NOTES 
5.78 ACRES 

BELL COUNTY, TEXAS 

BEING 5.78 acres of land out of the Orville T. Tyler Survey, Abstract No. 20, Bell County, Texas, and 
being all of a called 5.781 acre tract of land described in a deed to JONATHAN HUNTER, recorded in 
Document No. 2017-052282, Real Property Records in Bell County, Texas, and being more particularly 
described by metes and bounds as follows: 

BEGINNING at a ½ inch iron rod found in the north right-of-way line of Taylor Valley Road, for the 
southeast corner of said 5.781 acre tract and being at the southwest corner of a called 264.432 acre tract of 
land described in a deed to KILLEEN ONION CREEK, LP, recorded in Document No. 2018-020116, of 
said Property Records; 

THENCE with the north right-of-way line of said Taylor Valley Road and with the most southerly 
boundary line of said 5.781 acre tract, being a curve to the left, having a radius of 1104.18 feet, an arc 
length of 53.95 feet, and a long chord bearing S 83°29’22” W, 53.95 feet, to a ½ inch iron rod with cap 
set for the southwest corner of said 5.781 acre tract and for the southeast corner of a called 3.26 acre tract 
of land described in a deed to RT SCHNEIDER CONSTRUCTION CO., LTD, recorded in Volume 6247, 
Page 751, Official Public Records of Bell County, Texas; 

THENCE with the common boundary lines of said 5.781 acre tract and of said 3.26 acre tract, for the 
following calls: 

1. N 15°33’26” E, 609.93 feet (deed N 15°33’26” E, 609.94’), to a capped iron rod found;
2. N 73°52’41” W, 212.93 feet, to a capped iron rod found for the northwest corner of said 3.26 acre

tract and being in the east boundary line of a called 15.937 acre tract of land described in a deed
to RUSSELL SCHNEIDER et ux. JOY SCHNEIDER, recorded in Volume 3673, Page 527, said
Public Records, and being in the dividing line of Belton City Limits to the west and Temple
E.T.J. to the east;

THENCE N 15°32’58” E, 130.34 feet, with the said dividing line of said Belton City Limits and Temple 
E.T.J., same being the east boundary line of said 15.937 acre tract and the northerly west boundary line of 
said 5.781 acre tract, to a ½ inch iron rod found for the southeast corner of a called 36.501 acre tract of 
land described in a deed to JONATHAN HUNTER, recorded in Document No. 2016-028924, said 
Property Records, for the northeast corner of said 15.937 acre tract; 

THENCE continuing with the said dividing line of Belton City Limits and Temple E.T.J., same being the 
west boundary line of said 5.781 acre tract and with the east boundary line of said 36.501 acre tract, for 
the following calls: 

1. N 15°30’32” E, 905.31 feet, to a capped iron rod found;
2. N 01°33’57” E, 1168.84 feet, to a capped iron rod found in the southeast bank of the Leon River,

for the north corner of said 36.501 acre tract and for the northwest corner of said 5.781 acre tract;

THENCE N 22°24’33” E, 84.40 feet (deed N 22°18’38” E, 84.70’), continuing with the said dividing 
line of Belton City Limits and Temple E.T.J., along the southeast bank of said Leon River and with the 
most northerly west boundary line of said 5.781 acre tract, to a capped iron rod found for the north corner 
of said 5.781 acre tract and being at the northwest corner of said 264.432 acre tract; 

THENCE departing the said dividing line of Belton City Limits and Temple E.T.J., with the east 
boundary line of said 5.781 acre tract and along the west boundary line of said 264.432 acre tract, for the 
following calls: 

1. S 01°03’17” W, 2141.27 feet, to a capped iron rod found;
2. S 15°33’26” W, 772.32 feet, to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 5.78 acres of land.

NOTES:  
The bearings and distances recited herein are grid values derived from GPS observations based on the NAD 1983 (2011 datum) 
State Plane Coordinate System, Texas Central Zone (4203).  CCF = 0.9998618.   

__________________________________________ 
Luther E. Frobish 
Registered Professional Land Surveyor 
State of Texas No. 6200 

04/17/2023



Exhibit B - Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 

 EXHIBIT B  City of Belton 
                    − Founded 1850 − 
 
 
 
July 25, 2023 
 
City of Belton Municipal Service Plan for the Annexation of the following parcels of property: 

 
Property described as a 5.78-acre tract of property located in the O.T. Tyler Survey, 
Abstract 20, Taylors Valley Road, Bell County, Texas (Property ID# - 479259, B/CS 
Leasing LLC, Property Owner). 

 
In accordance with State law, the City is required to provide all areas subject to annexation with 
a Service Plan. The City will provide the following services, beginning immediately upon the 
effective date of the annexation. All the services will be provided at a service level that is equal 
or superior to the level of services in the area prior to the annexation.  
 
Police Protection. Police protection personnel and equipment from the Belton Police 
Department shall be provided to the areas immediately upon the effective date of the annexation 
of the areas. Response to calls for police services, crime prevention programs and all other police 
services will be provided at the same level as provided to other areas of the City. Police 
enforcement and protection services shall be provided at the request of residents/property owners 
in the area.  
 
Animal Control. The City shall provide animal control services immediately upon the effective 
date of the annexation of the area. These services encompass regular patrol by the animal control 
officer and response to animal nuisance problems from residents in the area.  
 
Fire and Emergency Medical Service (EMS) Protection. Upon annexation, the City will 
provide fire and EMS response at the level provided inside the Belton city limits. The service 
level will be equal to or better than the current level, with the limitations of water available. 
Code Enforcement. The City shall provide code enforcement services immediately upon 
annexation to include response to complaints of weedy lot violations, junked vehicles, sign 
violations, and other similar general city code violations.  
 
Fire Prevention. All of the services performed by the City’s Fire Marshal shall be provided 
immediately upon the effective date of the annexation of the areas.  
 
Planning, Zoning and Development Review. The area will automatically be zoned Agricultural 
on the effective date of annexation. In conjunction with review of Comprehensive Plan, a land 
use plan will be developed and permanent zoning established under the process specified by the 
City’s Zoning Ordinance. In the interim, the Planning & Zoning Commission and the City 
Council will consider zoning and rezoning tracts of the property in response to landowner 
requests. Subdivision plat review will occur in the City and in Belton’s extraterritorial 
jurisdiction in order to ensure orderly development of land, reduce flood potential, achieve 



Exhibit B - Page 2 of 3 
 

efficient operation of public facilities and services, and provide accurate description and 
addressing of property.  
 
Code Compliance. Immediately upon the annexation becoming effective, building inspection 
activities will be available. The Building Official shall provide consultation with the project 
developers, independent contractors and homeowners for building code requirements, plan 
review for structures in the area, and on-site inspection services as needed, to include evaluation 
of hazardous and dilapidated buildings.  
 
Library. Residents within the newly annexed areas shall be provided all services available at 
Belton’s Lena Armstrong Public Library.  
 
Parks and Recreation. All City of Belton public parks, facilities, and resources shall be 
available to residents of the annexed area.  
 
Streets and Drainage. Existing dedicated public streets and drainage structures and courses 
maintained by Bell County will be maintained by the City of Belton at their current or better 
level of improvement with like topography, land use, and density as those found within the City. 
Private streets are not maintained by the City. Roadways maintained by the Texas Department of 
Transportation (TxDOT) will continue to be maintained by TxDOT. Maintenance of streets and 
rights-of-way shall be as follows:  

(1) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures necessary 
for traffic flow, etc.  
(2) Routine maintenance and right-of-way mowing as presently performed within City.  
(3) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage facilities, 
construction of curbs, gutters and other such major improvements as the need therefore is 
determined by the governing body under City policies.  
(4) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings and other 
traffic control devices as the need therefore is established by appropriate study and traffic 
standards.  
(5) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with established policies 
of the City.  
(6) The City will enforce drainage requirements in the Subdivision Ordinance and related 
standards.  
(7) Private streets will remain the responsibility of record owners or the homeowners 
association and as such be maintained by the responsible party.  

 
Sanitation and Recycling. Sanitation and recycling service will be immediately available to 
residential customers in accordance with existing City ordinances. Residents in the newly 
annexed area may select to continue service with their current service provider for up to two 
years, or switch to the City’s service, currently provided by contract with Waste Management, 
Inc. After the second anniversary of the annexation date, the City will provide the service at City 
rates. Residents will be contacted with information regarding how to obtain sanitation and 
recycling service, and efforts will be made to coordinate any transition of service. Sanitation 
service will be immediately available to non-residential customers through any of the 
commercial services franchised by the City. Non-residential customers are responsible for 
obtaining commercial service.  
 
Brush Collection Services. Brush collection services shall be provided to residents in the same 
manner and at the same rate as provided for other residents within the City of Belton.  
 



Exhibit B - Page 3 of 3 
 

Water Service/Distribution. The area proposed for annexation is located within Certificate of 
Convenience and Necessity of the City of Belton. Water service will be subject to regulation by 
the City of Belton as it relates to development standards and design requirements, including the 
City’s subdivision regulations, in effect at the time of installation. The developer or property 
owner is responsible for funding extension and connection to the municipal system in accordance 
with the City’s subdivision regulations and extension policies.  
 
Wastewater Service/Collection. Wastewater services are available for extension to the area 
proposed for annexation in the same manner as they are available in the other locations within 
the City of Belton, in accordance with the City’s wastewater extension policies. The developer or 
property owner is responsible for funding extension and connection to the municipal system in 
accordance with the City’s subdivision regulations and extension policies.  
 
Environmental Health. Immediately upon the effective date of the annexation, the City’s 
environmental health ordinances and regulations shall be applicable to the annexed areas. All 
health-related matters are handled for the City by the Bell County Health District.  
 
Services, Funding and City Policies. All services which require expenditure of public funds are 
subject to annual appropriations by the City Council. Copies of City policies are available in the 
City Clerk’s office upon request. 



 
 

 

City Council Agenda Item 
July 25, 2023 

Page 1 of 3   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item                   
 
       Date:  July 25, 2023    

Case No.: Z-23-14 
Request: Agricultural to HI 

Applicant/Owner: Republic Engineering & 
Development Services/B/CS 
Leasing LLC.  
 

Agenda Item #7 
 
Z-23-14 – Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Agricultural (A) to Heavy 
Industrial (HI) on an approximately 5.78 acres tract of property on Taylors Valley Road, located 
in the O.T. Tyler Survey, Abstract 20, on the north side of Taylors Valley Road, east of Hubbard 
Lane and west of the Leon River.  
 
Originating Department 
 
Planning Department – Tina Moore, Planner 
 
Current Zoning: Agricultural District (A) 
 
Current Use(s): Vacant Property  
 
Proposed Zoning: Heavy Industrial  
 
Proposed Uses: Concrete Batch Plant  
     
Future Land Use Map (FLUM) Designation:  
 
This area is pending annexation and is not currently on the FLUM. The property is adjacent to 
Industrial land uses.    
 
Design Standards Type Area 10: 
 
This area is pending annexation and is adjacent to Type Area 10, which is projected to be 
primarily industrial and manufacturing businesses.  
 
Background/Case Summary 
 
The applicant recently requested a release from the City of Temple’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction 
(ETJ) and voluntary annexation into Belton. Temple approved the release of this property from 
their Extraterritorial Jurisdiction at their City Council Meeting on July 6, 2023.  



 
 

 

City Council Agenda Item 
July 25, 2023 

Page 2 of 3   
 

Section 6 of the Zoning Ordinance, states that all properties annexed shall be classified as 
Agricultural until a permanent zoning is approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission and 
City Council.  
 
The applicant is requesting that this property be zoned to Heavy Industrial for the construction 
of a Concrete Batch Plant.  The proposed zoning is consistent with adjacent properties.  
 
Project Analysis and Discussion 
 
Existing Conditions: The surrounding uses are: 
 
Direction Zoning  Use 
North  N/A City of Temple Limits 
South Heavy Industrial  American Spincast, and Cap 

Fleet Upfitters  
West Heavy Industrial and 

City of Temple ETJ 
RT Schneider Construction  

East N/A Bell County (City of Temple ETJ) 
 
Allowable Land Uses: The proposed zoning change would allow for the proposed Concrete 
Plant and other uses permitted in the HI District (various manufacturing plants, refinery or 
chemical plant, meat packing plant, gravel and soil storage, etc.).  
 
Area & Setback Requirements: The subject lot exceeds the minimum area requirement for the 
HI District, which requires a minimum lot size of 15,000 SF, and a minimum width of 75’. This 
lot is approximately 5.78 acres and meets the minimum lot requirements. A preliminary and 
final plat are under review for this property.  
 
Water and Sewer: This property will be serviced by City of Belton water and wastewater.  
 
Recommendation 
 
At their meeting on July 18, 2023, the Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously 
recommended approval of the requested zoning change from Agricultural District to Heavy 
Industrial for the property located on Taylors Valley Road, subject to the following: 

 
1. All proposed use of this property shall conform to the Heavy Industrial District in all 

respects. 
2. The development of each property shall conform to all applicable Type Area 10 Design 

Standards, as identified in Ordinance 2014-17, Section 7.1 of the Zoning Ordinance, 
including: 

a. Site Development Standards  
b. Landscape Design Standards 
c. Tree Protection, Preservation, and Mitigation Standards.  

 



 
 

 

City Council Agenda Item 
July 25, 2023 

Page 3 of 3   
 

Attachments 
Zoning application  
Property Location Map 
Zoning map 
Aerial  
Map with zoning notice boundary (200’)/Zoning notice to owners/Property owner list 
P&Z Minutes Excerpt 
Ordinance 
 

  



















ORDINANCE NO. 2023-23 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON BY 
CHANGING THE DESCRIBED DISTRICT FROM AGRICULTRUAL DISTRICT TO HEAVY 
INDUSTRIAL FOR APPROXIMATLY 5.78 ACRES LOCATED ON TAYLORS VALLEY 
ROAD, EAST OF HUBBARD LANE AND WEST OF THE LEON RIVER.  
 
WHEREAS,  Republic Engineering &Development Services, representing B/CS Leasing 
Inc., the property owner, has presented a petition duly signed, to the City Planning & 
Zoning Commission and filed said petition with the City Clerk of the City of Belton, and due 
notice of filing of said petition and hearing on said petition has been given as required by 
the City Zoning Ordinance and by law, and a hearing on said petition before the City 
Planning & Zoning Commission of the City of Belton was set for the 18th day of July, 2023, 
at 5:30 p.m. for hearing and adoption, said district being described as follows: 
 

approximately 5.78 acres  
located on the north side of Taylors Valley Road,  
east of Hubbard Lane and west of the Leon River 

described in the O.T Tyler Survey, Abstract 20 
(location map attached as Exhibit “A”) 

 
WHEREAS, said application for such amendment was duly recommended by the 

said City Planning & Zoning Commission and the date, time, and place of the hearing on 
said application by the City Council of the City of Belton was set for the 25th day of July 
2023, at 5:30 p.m. at the Harris Community Center and due notice of said hearing was 
given as required by ordinances and by law; and 
 

WHEREAS, a hearing was held upon the application by the City Council of the City 
of Belton at the time, place and date herein before set forth and no valid objection to said 
amendments was presented. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Belton, 
Texas, that the said district located on a tract of land as more fully and completely 
described above, be and is hereby changed Agricultural to Heavy Industrial, in accordance 
to Section 28, Heavy Industrial Zoning District, and the Design Standards in Ordinance 
2014-17, Section 7.1 of the Zoning Ordinance. The Zoning Ordinance of the City of Belton 
is hereby amended, subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. All proposed use of this property shall conform to the Heavy Industrial District in all 

respects. 
2. The development of each property shall conform to all applicable Type Area 10 

Design Standards, as identified in Ordinance 2014-17, Section 7.1 of the Zoning 
Ordinance, including: 

a. Site Development Standards  
b. Landscape Design Standards 
c. Tree Protection, Preservation, and Mitigation Standards.  



 
This ordinance was presented at the stated meeting of the City Council of the City of Belton 
and upon reading was passed and adopted by the City Council on the 25th day of July 
2023, by a vote of ______ ayes and ______ nays. 
 

SIGNED AND APPROVED by the Mayor and attested by the City Clerk on this the 
25th day of July, 2023. 
 
 

_____________________________ 
David K. Leigh, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



EXH
IB

IT "A
"



1 
 

Minutes of the  
Planning and Zoning Commission (P&ZC) 

City of Belton 
Tuesday, July 18, 2023

 
The Planning and Zoning Commission met at 5:30 p.m. at the Harris Community Center, 401 North Alexander Street. 
Commission members who were present: Vice Chair David Jarratt, Alton McCallum, Quinton Locklin, Dominica Garza via 
Zoom, Luke Potts, and Justin Ruiz.  The following members were absent: Joshua Knowles, Nicole Fischer, and Brett 
Baggerly. The following staff members were present: Director of Planning Bob van Til, Planner Tina Moore, Planning 
Administrator Melinda Brice, and IT System Analyst Alex Munger.  
 
6. Z-23-14 - Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Agricultural (A) to Heavy Industrial (HI) 

on an approximately 5.78 acres tract of property on Taylor’s Valley Road, located in the O.T. Tyler Survey, 
Abstract 20, on the north side of Taylors Valley Road, east of Rockwood Lane and west of Shallow Ford Road.    
(Audio 04:26) 
 
City Planner Ms. Moore presented the staff report. 
 
Vice Chair David Jarratt opened the public hearing.   
 
Tyler Freese, Civil Engineer with Republic Engineering & Development Services, of 6305 Pat Cole, Temple, TX, spoke 
to the commission about the project and answered questions from the commission members.  
 
With no further public input, the public hearing was closed. 
 
Commission Member Quinton Locklin made a motion to approve Z-23-14 as presented. Commission Member Alton 
McCallum seconded the motion. The motion passed with 6 ayes and 0 nays.  



 
                                                                                                                       
 
 
 

City Council Agenda Item 
July 25, 2023 

Page 1 of 2   
 
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
      Date:  July 25, 2023   

Case No.: P-23-07 
      Request:  Preliminary Plat 

Applicant: Republic Engineering and  
Development Services    

  Owner/Developer: B/CS Leasing, LLC  
 
Agenda Item #8 
 
P-23-07  ̶ Consider a preliminary plat for the Taylors Valley Addition, comprising 43.07 acres, 
located at 2792 Taylors Valley Road, east of Hubbard Lane and west of the Leon River.  

 
Originating Department 
 
Planning – Tina Moore, Planner 
 
Case Summary 
 
This preliminary plat includes one block, tract A, and lot 1 for the development of Heavy 
Industrial developments. Approximately 5.78 acres, located on the east side of the property in 
the Temple ETJ, is scheduled for annexation. The City Council will consider the annexation at 
their July 25 meeting.     
 
Project Analysis and Discussion 
 
This property is mostly zoned Heavy Industrial (HI). The 5.78 acres to be annexed is also being 
considered for a zoning change to Heavy Industrial (see zoning case Z-23-14).  Below are the 
requirements for HI Zoning District.  
 
 HI Proposed Plat 
Minimum Lot Area 15,000 SF 43.07 acres 

 
Lot Width 75’ Approximately 1,445 
Lot Depth N/A Approximately 2,123 
Minimum Front Yard Setback 25’ 25’ 
Minimum Side Yard Setback None unless adjacent to 

residential then 60’  
NA 

Minimum Rear Yard Setback None unless adjacent to 
residential then 60’ 

NA 

Maximum Lot Coverage 50%  



 
 

City Council Agenda Item 
July 25, 2023 

Page 2 of 2   
 

Water:  Most of this property, except for the 5.78 acres anticipated for annexation, is located 
within the City of Belton Certificate of Convenience and Necessity (CCN). An 8” water line is 
available in Taylor Valley Road. The applicant will extend the 8” line to serve lot one and 
eventually the entire property.   
 
Sewer:  This is located outside the City’s Wastewater CCN. However, the south side of Taylors 
Valley Road is within the CCN. A 6” sewer line is located on Taylors Valley Road. The applicant 
will connect to the existing line and extend an 8” wastewater line to serve the entire property.   
 
Access:  Access will be provided from Taylors Valley Road by a new local street, Texcon Lane, 
on the eastern side of the property. Another access is proved by an existing private road 
Rockwool Road, on the west side of the property.   
 
Streets: Taylors Valley Road is designated as a local street on the Thoroughfare Plan Map 
that requires 50’ of right of way (ROW) and 31’ of pavement. The current road has 80’ of ROW 
and approximately 26’ of pavement. No dedication or perimeter street improvements are 
required.  
 
Texcon Lane is a proposed local street that will provide access to Taylors Valley Road. Texcon 
Lane is proposed to be a 50’-60’ of ROW, 31’ of pavement with curb and gutter.   
 
Georgetown Railroad Hike and Bike Trail: A 20’ wide easement for an alternative route for 
the Georgetown Railroad Hike and Bike Trail is included in this preliminary plat. This is a 
regional trail project between Belton and Temple. This proposed trail will begin at the 
intersection of Taylors Valley Road and extend through the property to the Leon River. If the 
trail utilizes this route, it may extend across the Leon River into the City of Temple.  
 
Drainage:  Drainage plans have been reviewed by staff.  

Recommendation 

At their meeting on July 18, 2023, the Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously 
recommended approval of the Taylors Valley Addition preliminary plat.   
 
Attachments 
Preliminary Plat Application 
Location Map 
Zoning Map 
Preliminary Plat 
P&Z Minutes Excerpt 











1 
 

Minutes of the  
Planning and Zoning Commission (P&ZC) 

City of Belton 
Tuesday, July 18, 2023

 
The Planning and Zoning Commission met at 5:30 p.m. at the Harris Community Center, 401 North Alexander Street. 
Commission members who were present: Vice Chair David Jarratt, Alton McCallum, Quinton Locklin, Dominica Garza via 
Zoom, Luke Potts, and Justin Ruiz.  The following members were absent: Joshua Knowles, Nicole Fischer, and Brett 
Baggerly. The following staff members were present: Director of Planning Bob van Til, Planner Tina Moore, Planning 
Administrator Melinda Brice, and IT System Analyst Alex Munger.  
 
7. P-23-07 - Consider a preliminary plat for the Taylors Valley Addition, comprising 43.07 acres, located on 

Taylors Valley Road, east of Hubbard Lane and west of the Leon River.  (Audio 09:47) 
 
City Planner Ms. Moore presented the staff report. 
 
Vice Chair David Jarratt opened the public hearing.   
 
Tyler Freese, Civil Engineer with Republic Engineering & Development Services, of 6305 Pat Cole, Temple, TX, spoke 
to the commission about the project and answered questions from the commission members. 
 
With no further public input, the public hearing was closed. 
 
Commission Member Luke Potts made a motion to approve P-23-07 as presented. Commission Member Quinton 
Locklin seconded the motion. The motion passed with 6 ayes and 0 nays.  



 
 

City Council Agenda Item 
July 25, 2023 

Page 1 of 2   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
      Date:  July 25, 2023   

Case No.: P-23-18 
      Request:  Final Plat 

Applicant: Republic Engineering and  
Development Services    

  Owner/Developer:  B/CS Leasing, LLC  
 
Agenda Item #9 
 
P-23-13  ̶  Consider a final plat for the Taylors Valley Addition Phase I, comprising 8.06 acres, 
located at 2792 Taylors Valley Road, east of Hubbard Lane and west of the Leon River.  
 
Originating Department 
 
Planning – Tina Moore, Planner 
 
Case Summary 
 
This final plat proposes a one-block, one-lot, and access easement across Tract A addition for 
heavy industrial developments. This includes approximately 5.78 acres, located on the east 
side of this plat, scheduled for annexation by the City Council on July 25, 2023. Zoning case 
Z-23-14 requests a zoning change from Agricultural to Heavy Industrial for 5.78 acres of this 
property.   
 
Project Analysis and Discussion 
 
This property exceeds the minimum requirements for the AG and HI zoning districts. Plat note 
#8, indicates setbacks will be in accordance with the Zoning Ordinance. Future construction 
plans will be reviewed to ensure setback requirements are met.  Below are the requirements 
for HI and AG zoning districts.  
 
 HI AG Proposed Plat 
Minimum Lot Area 15,000 SF 3 acres 8.07 acres 

 
Lot Width 75’ 150’ Approximately 1,445 
Lot Depth N/A 300’ Approximately 2,123 
Minimum Front Yard 
Setback 

25’ 50’ 25’ 

Minimum Side Yard 
Setback 

None unless adjacent 
to residential then 60’  

20’ NA 

Minimum Rear Yard 
Setback 

None unless adjacent 
to residential then 60’ 

25’ NA 

Maximum Lot 
Coverage 

50% N/A  



 
 

City Council Agenda Item 
July 25, 2023 

Page 2 of 2   
 

Water:  Most of this property, except for the 5.78 acres scheduled for annexation, is located 
within the City of Belton Certificate of Convenience and Necessity (CCN). An 8” water line is 
available in Taylors Valley Road. The applicant plans to extend an 8” water line to the end of 
the proposed Texcon Lane (public ROW). A private service line will connect Lot 1 to the public 
water line.    
 
Sewer:  This is located outside the City’s Wastewater CCN. However, the south side of Taylors 
Valley Road is within the CCN.  A 6” sewer line is available at this location. The applicant will 
connect to the existing line and extend an 8” wastewater line to the end of the north end of 
Texcon Lane. 
 
Access:  Access will be provided from Taylors Valley Road by a new local street, Texcon Lane, 
on the east side of the property.  
 
Streets: Texcon Lane is a proposed local street that will provide access to this property from 
Taylors Valley Road. Texcon Lane is proposed to be 50’- 60’ of ROW, 31’ of pavement with 
curb and gutter.  
 
Georgetown Railroad Hike and Bike Trail: An alternative route for the Georgetown Railroad 
Hike and Bike Trail is included in the preliminary plat. This is a regional trail project between 
Belton and Temple. This proposed trail will begin at the intersection of Taylors Valley Road and 
extend through the property to the Leon River. If the trail utilizes this route, it may extend across 
the Leon River into the City of Temple. The road section for Texcon Lane shows that a 10’ trail 
can be constructed within the ROW. Plat note #7 provides authorization for the City to construct 
the trail if this route is utilized.   
 
Drainage: Drainage plans are under review and pending corrections as noted in the staff 
comment letter to the applicant.  

Recommendation 

At their meeting on July 18, 2023, the Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously 
recommended approval of the Taylor Valley Phase 1, Final Plat, subject to: 
 

a. Staff Comment Letter dated 7-11-23. 
 
Attachments 
Final Plat Application 
Final Plat 
Location Map 
Zoning Map 
Staff Comment Letter 7-11-23 
P&Z Minutes Excerpt 















1 
 

Minutes of the  
Planning and Zoning Commission (P&ZC) 

City of Belton 
Tuesday, July 18, 2023

 
The Planning and Zoning Commission met at 5:30 p.m. at the Harris Community Center, 401 North Alexander Street. 
Commission members who were present: Vice Chair David Jarratt, Alton McCallum, Quinton Locklin, Dominica Garza via 
Zoom, Luke Potts, and Justin Ruiz.  The following members were absent: Joshua Knowles, Nicole Fischer, and Brett 
Baggerly. The following staff members were present: Director of Planning Bob van Til, Planner Tina Moore, Planning 
Administrator Melinda Brice, and IT System Analyst Alex Munger.  
 
8. P-23-18 - Consider a final plat for the Taylors Valley Addition Phase I, comprising 8.06 acres, located on 

Taylors Valley Road, east of Hubbard Lane and west of the Leon River.  (Audio 14:59) 
 
 City Planner Ms. Moore presented the staff report. 
 
Vice Chair David Jarratt opened the public hearing.   
 
With no public input, the public hearing was closed. 
 
Commission Member Quinton Locklin made a motion to approve P-23-18 as presented. Commission Member Alton 
McCallum seconded the motion. The motion passed with 6 ayes and 0 nays.  


	Agenda - 072523
	City of Belton, Texas
	City Council Meeting Agenda
	Wright Room at the Harris Community Center


	City Manager's Memo - 072523
	City of Belton, Texas
	City Council Meeting Agenda
	Wright Room at the Harris Community Center


	#3 - Minutes - 071123
	Belton City Council Meeting
	Resolution no. 2023-14-R
	City Manager Sam Listi presented Item 9 stating that City staff feels it is very important for the City of Belton to take a stand with the City of Houston against the pre-emption bill, HB2127, that is set to go into effect on September 1, 2023.

	#4 - SR - H-23-05 SR 100 Water Street
	Recommendation

	#4b - HPC Minutes - 07-06-23
	#4c - Attachments
	#4d - Facade Improvement Grant Funding
	Sheet1

	#6a - SR - Taylors Valley Rd public hearing and annex property
	#6b - 1. Taylors Valley - Concept Plan_08-25-2022
	Sheets and Views
	TVR_Base-24X36 (2)


	#6c - 2. taylors_valley_annexation_exhibit
	#6d - 3. Voluntary Annexation Request
	#6e - 2023-22 - Annexation of 5.78 acres on Taylors Valley Road
	#6f - 2023-22 - Exhibit A - Temple ETJ
	#6g - 2023-22 - Exhibit A - Field Notes - Temple ETJ
	#6h - 2023-22 - Exhibit B - Municipal Service Plan
	#7a - SR - Z-23-15 Zoning Change -Taylor Valley Road
	#7b - Z-23-14 attachments
	#7c - 2023-23 - Zoning Change - Taylors Valley Annexation Zoning Change
	#7d - 2023-23 - Exhibit A
	#7e - P&Z Minutes - 07-18-23
	#8a - SR - Taylors Valley Preliminary Plat
	#8b - Taylors Valley Addition prelim plat attachments
	#8c - P&Z Minutes - 07-18-23
	#9a - SR - Taylors Valley Ph. 1 Final Plat
	#9b - Taylors Valley Road Final Plat attachments
	#9c - P&Z Minutes - 07-18-23



